
Corporate, Customer and Community Services Directorate 
Legal and Democratic Services  Cumbria House  Botchergate  Carlisle 

Cumbria  CA1 1RDA   
Tel 01228 606060  Email democratic.services@cumbria.gov.uk 

 
 

  

 

 

01/09/2021 

 
 
To:   The Chair and Members of the  

Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) 
Scrutiny Board 

 
 
 

Agenda 
 
 
 
A meeting of the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board will be held as follows:  
 
 Date: Thursday 9 September 2021 

 Time: 2.00 pm 

 Place: Cumbria House, Carlisle 

 
 
NB THERE WILL BE A PRE-MEETING OF THE BOARD AT 13:30pm IN 

CONFERENCE ROOM A/B AND ALL MEMBERS ARE ENCOURAGED TO 
ATTEND 

 
 
Dawn Roberts 
Executive Director – Corporate, Customer and Community Services 
 
 
 
 
Enquiries and requests for supporting papers to:  
Direct Line:  
Email:  daniel.hamilton@cumbria.gov.uk 
 

This agenda is available on request in alternative formats 
 

 
 
 

Serving the People of Cumbria 

mailto:daniel.hamilton@cumbria.gov.uk


 

 

MEMBERSHIP 
 
  
County Council Members 
 
Mr S Collins 
Mr P Dew 
Ms C Driver 
Mrs S Evans 
Mr K Hamilton 
Mr S Haraldsen 
Mr K Hitchen 
Mr M Hawkins  
Mr C Hogg  
Mr J Lister 
Mr B McEwan 
Mrs V Tarbitt 
Mr B Wearing (Chair) 
Mr M Wilson (Vice-Chair) 
 
 

 

District Council Members 
 
Allerdale Borough Council – Ms C Bell 
Barrow Borough Council – Ms H Edwards 
Carlisle City Council – Mr J Bainbridge 
Copeland Borough Council – Mr J Kane 
Eden District Council – Mrs M Robinson 
South Lakeland District Council – Mr R Ashcroft 
 
 
 
 

ACCESS TO INFORMATION 
 
 
Agenda and Reports 
 
Copies of the agenda and Part I reports are available for members of the public to inspect 
prior to the meeting.  Copies will also be available at the meeting. 
 
The agenda and Part I reports are also available on the County Council’s website –  
www.cumbria.gov.uk   
 
Background Papers 
 
Requests for the background papers to the Part I reports, excluding those papers that 
contain exempt information, can be made to the Democratic Services Unit at the address 
overleaf between the hours of 9.00 am and 4.30 pm, Monday to Friday. 

http://www.cumbria.gov.uk/


 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 
PART 1: ITEMS LIKELY TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE PRESENCE OF THE PRESS 

AND PUBLIC 
 
 

1   APOLOGIES 
 

To receive any apologies for absence.  
   
 
2   MEMBERSHIP 

 
To note any changes of membership.  
   
 
3   DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST 

 

Members are invited to disclose any disclosable pecuniary interest they have in any item 
on the agenda which comprises 

 
1 Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 

profit or gain.  
 
2 Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from 

the authority) made or provided within the relevant period in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your 
election expenses.  (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a trade 
union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations 
(Consolidation) Act 1992.  

 
3 Details of any contract which is made between you (or a body in which you have 

a beneficial interest) and the authority  
 
 (a) Under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be 

executed; and  
 
 (b)  Which has not been fully discharged.  
 
4 Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the authority.   
 
5 Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the area of 

the authority for a month or longer.   
 
6 Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge)  
 
 (a) The landlord is the authority; and 
 
 (b) The tenant is a body in which you have a beneficial interest. 
 



 

 

7 Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 
 
 (a) That body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area 

of the authority; and 
 
 (b) Either –  
 
  (i) The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 

hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or 
 
  (ii) If that share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total 

nominal value of the shares of any one class in which the relevant 
person has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 
In addition, you must also disclose other non-pecuniary interests set out in the Code of 
Conduct where these have not already been registered. 
 
Note 
 
A “disclosable pecuniary interest” is an interest of a councillor or their partner 
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom they are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom they are living as if they are civil 
partners).  
 
   
 
4   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 

 
To consider whether the press and public should be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of any item on the agenda. 
   
 
5   MINUTES 

 
To approve the minutes of the last meeting held on 8 March 2021.  
   
(Pages 7 - 12) 
 
 
6   ECONOMIC IMPACT UPDATE 

 
To consider an update from the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP. 
  
(Pages 13 - 20) 
 
 
7   LABOUR SUPPLY AND SKILLS 

 
To consider an update from the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP. 
  
(Pages 21 - 30) 



 

 

 
8   CLEP SUPPORT FOR BUSINESS 

 
To consider an update from the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP. 
   
(Pages 31 - 32) 
 
 
9   RECOVERY PLANNING - IMPLEMENTING THE RETHINK THEME 

 
For information only.  
  
 (Pages 33 - 38) 
 
 
10   LEP REVIEW 

 
For information only.  
   
(Pages 39 - 40) 
 
 
11   DATE OF NEXT MEETING 

 
The next meeting of the Board is due to take place at 13:30 pm on 1 March 2022 in 
Conference Room A/B, Cumbria House.  
   
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



  1 

 

 
Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board 

 
2.00 pm, 8 March 2021 

 
Present at the meeting 

 
 
                County Councillors 

Mr S Collins 
Ms C Driver 
Mrs S Evans 

Mr S Haraldsen 
Mr J Lister 

Mr B McEwan 
Mrs V Tarbitt 

Mr B Wearing (Chair) 
Mr M Wilson (Vice-Chair) 

 
 
 
 

Borough Councillors 
      Ms H Edwards 
      Mr J Bainbridge 
 
 
 

30 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Mr P Dew and Mr R Ashcroft.  
 
 
31 MEMBERSHIP  
 
There were no changes to the membership on this occasion.  
 
 
32 DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST  
 
There were no disclosures of interest made on this occasion.  
 
 
33 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 
RESOLVED that,  the press and public not be excluded from the meeting 

during consideration of any items of business on the 
agenda. 

 
 
34 MINUTES  
 
RESOLVED that,  the minutes of the previous meeting held on the 10 

September 2020 were confirmed as an accurate record.  
 
 
35 Restart, Reboot, Rethink - Implementation Update  
 

7

Agenda Item 5



2 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (8.3.21) 
 
 

 

Members considered a report from the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP which 
provided an update on the development of Restart, Reboot, Rethink – A Plan for 
Cumbria’s Economic Recovery.”  
 
Members were reminded that the plan was developed in August 2020 and was 
implemented immediately afterwards. Members heard that implementation had been 
iterative given the nature of the pandemic and the fact that two further lockdowns 
and a tiering system had been in place since the document was written. Despite this 
movement between response and recovery, Cumbria LEP had continued to make 
good progress in implementing the plan.  
 
Since the Scrutiny Board last met, all of the Sectoral Panels had completed their 
recovery plans and are working on the implementation of these. Cumbria LEP had 
also been focusing efforts on the six rethink themes, as these would be critical to 
Cumbria’s long term recovery. The six themes were as follows:  
 

 Clean Energy Production – a world-recognised heritage and expertise which 

provides the platform for significant future investment in energy generation.  

 Diversify to Thrive – building on the pivoting that has taken place and 

moving it to the next level in terms of localisation of supply chains, movement 

into new markets and extending inward investment. 

 The New Visitor Experience – capturing the changes in sustainable visitor 

behaviour by offering a world class experience to a wide range of markets.  

 The Future of Food – enhancing Cumbria’s crop based food production to sit 

alongside its existing meat and dairy excellence. 

 Cumbria, The UK’s Natural Capital – promoting and exploiting the benefits 

created by having the most protected landscape in England. 

 The Way We Live, The Way We Work Now - benefitting from the rethink that 

people are making about their lives and the way that they will live and work in 

the future. 

With regards to ‘Clean Energy Production’, the Chief Executive – CLEP provided an 
update on Cumbria’s response to the UKAEA’s siting competition. Which would seek 
to identify a 100 hectare site to host the Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production 
(STEP) fusion facility. This process was to be highly competitive and as such CLEP 
and its partners ensured that Cumbria put forward the strongest possible site. 
Moorside in Copeland was identified as the preferred site and as such CLEP and its 
consultants began working with Copeland and wider partners to develop the 
strongest possible application to be submitted to UKAEA on 31 March 2021.  
 
On the theme of ‘Diversify to Thrive’ Much of Cumbria LEP’s business support 
activity and EU Transition support had been focused on supporting businesses to 
diversify, pivot their business model and explore new markets in response to both 
the pandemic and EU Exit. An update was them provided on the UK Freeport bid, 
which was submitted to government on 5 February 2021. This encompassed the 
Ports of Barrow and Workington alongside Carlisle Lake District Airport with Allerdale 
Borough Council, Barrow Borough Council, Carlisle City Council and Cumbria 
County Council all confirming their support for the bid, alongside the 4 relevant 
constituency MPs.  
 

8



 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (8.3.21) 3 
 
 

 

Progress on the implementation of the priorities for the ‘New Visitor Experience’ 
theme had been significantly impacted upon as a result of the further two lockdowns 
and the tiering arrangements. The latter of which resulted in a significant reduction in 
markets, given that most of the North was operating under heightened restrictions 
meant that relatively few visitors were able to legitimately stay in Cumbria.  
 
The focus had therefore been on developing a really strong visitor economy sectoral 
plan to be implemented as soon as activity could recommence and influencing the 
content of the Tourism Recovery Plan, which was expected to be announced as part 
of the budget package.  
 
Relating to the theme ‘Future of Food’, members heard that Cumbria LEP had 
continued to progress the Vertical Farming proposal, which intended to create a 
complimentary food plant based food offer in Cumbria. Support had also been 
provided to SRUC to develop their bids for Strength in Places and the Borderlands 
Dairy Initiative, in order to ensure that Cumbrian dairy farmers would benefit from 
these, if successful.  
 
The Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP explained that the farming community had not 
been as seriously affected by the pandemic as some other sectors and had actually 
experienced better prices over recent months. However, it was recognised that the 
sector faced numerous challenges due to the significant changes presented by the 
Environmental Bill, Agricultural Bill and the end of the Common Agricultural Policy. In 
recognition of these changes Cumbria LEP was undertaking a series of stakeholder 
consultations to identify the most significant challenges and develop mitigations to 
address them.  
 
The pandemic had reinforced the importance of the theme of ‘The Way We Live, The 
Way We Work Now’, with the increased recognition that you do not  have to live 
where you work. The Your Future – come to Cumbria to live, work and invest - 
campaign had been rebooted once the initial lockdown was lifted. However, it had to 
be put back into abeyance following the introduction of the tiering system and 
subsequent lockdowns. The Cumbria LEP continued to promote Cumbria to inward 
investors and the Chief Executive noted that there had recently been increased 
interest in relocating to Cumbria. A discussion then took place regarding the 
necessity of having metrics that capture the value created in Cumbria by remote 
workers who’s companies may be based outside of the County.  
 
RESOLVED that,  members note the contents of the report.  
 
 
36 EU Exit transition support  
 
Members considered a report from the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP which 
provided members with an update on the support provided by the Cumbria LEP to 
aid with EU transition. Members heard that once the EU transition negotiations were 
concluded and the Trade and Cooperation Agreement (TCA) was agreed, an update 
of the EU Exit analysis was commissioned. This was report was produced by 
Stephen Nicol, Nicol Economics, and was presented to the Business and Economic 
Response and Recovery Group (BERRG) at its meeting on 12 January 2021, for 
comment. BERRG reviewed the document and at headline level agreed with the 

9



4 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (8.3.21) 
 
 

 

assessment within it. However, a question was raised about the assessment of the 
labour supply implications for the visitor economy/tourism sector which 
representatives believed might have been understated.   
 
The Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP explained that businesses  had been reporting 
issues in navigating the new arrangements with Rules of Origin and VAT, causing 
particular challenges. The increased paperwork now involved in trading with the EU 
is resulting in time and cost implications for businesses, with some businesses 
finding that they are being expected to complete both the export and import 
paperwork, on behalf of the businesses that they are trading with.  
 
Regulation regarding ‘Rules of Origin’ appear to be causing the most significant 
issues for businesses, with a number flagging serious concerns about this. One 
business reported that they recently attended an Institute of Export event, with over 
60% of the companies attending saying that they were not confident in their 
understanding of the new rules. 
 
Members discussed the consequences of the Cumbria LEP findings which 
suggested that smaller businesses increasingly appear to be avoiding trading with 
the EU and were either seeking out new suppliers or exploring new markets. 
Discussion reflected a potential positive aspect to this trend in helping to strengthen 
more localised supply chains. However, discussion then turned towards the issues 
identified for businesses across a range of sectors who had been reporting issues 
relating to availability of stock. 
 
The Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP then explained that over the last few weeks, 

issues relating to the complexities and costs associated with doing business in 

Northern Ireland had escalated. CLEP is trying to gain a better understanding as to 

why this issue has escalated locally only recently, when other areas have 

experienced issues for some weeks prior.  
 

Members asked for an update regarding BEIS funding to LEPs to deliver on specific 

EU Transition support to businesses. The Chief Executive - Cumbria LEP informed 

members that they had recruited a team to provide this support to local businesses 

and that this team was contacting businesses directly to see what additional support 

they needed to help navigate the changes following the end of the transition period.  

In addition to 1-2-1 support a series of targeted clinics were being delivered. 

Concerns were raised regarding this funding support as it would come to an end 31 

March 2021. The Chief Executive- CLEP explained that as such it was important that 

Cumbrian businesses gained maximum benefit from this, in advance of that date.  
 
RESOLVED that,  members note the contents of the report.  

 
37 LEP Overview  
 
The Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP provided an overview on a number of these 
themes which were of interest to members of the LEP Scrutiny Board alongside a 
summary of Cumbria LEP’s financial position.  
 

10



 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (8.3.21) 5 
 
 

 

Regarding the 2020/21 Outturn Report the Chief Executive – Cumbria LEP stated 
that during the latter half of the year Cumbria LEP received a further two contracts 
from BEIS – Peer to Peer Networks and EU Transition funding. However, the impact 
of these on the bottom line was neutral as the income needed to be fully defrayed on 
expenditure. This meant that the forecast outturn for year was projected to be an 
operating deficit of £152,843 compared with that projected at the outset of the year 
of £148,252 deficit. Members heard that the currently projected deficit would result in 
a carryover of income and expenditure reserves into 2021/22 of £226,006.  
 
The Cumbria LEP Board had informally considered a provisional budget for the 
2021/22 financial year, with the majority of the income within this being now 
confirmed, subject to contract. This provisional budgets would result in a modest 
operating surplus of £27,734 for the financial year.  
 
The Growth Deal programme concluded that on 31 March 2021 with all future capital 
funding being routed via other funding programmes such as the Levelling Up Fund. 
These new capital funding programmes would operate through open bidding 
processes and as such LEPs would not hold the funding for these programmes.  
 
Government provided a £10.5million allocation for the Getting Building Fund capital 
programme which needed to be spent by 31 March 2022. Cumbria LEP put forward 
two projects for the programme - A595 Bothel and the Vertical Farming project. The 
£5million for the A595 Bothel scheme had been financially committed, with work on 
finalising the position on the £5.5million Vertical Farming project continuing. 
Contingency planning was taking place to ensure that Cumbria could spend the 
remaining £5.5million of funding by 31 March 2022, should it be necessary.  
 
On the topic of the Annual Performance Review (APR) of LEPs the Chief Executive 
– Cumbria LEP explained that the review took place annually by government, with 
the focus on three themes of Governance, Delivery and Strategic Impact. ‘Delivery’ 
would now encompass the Local Growth Fund (LGF), Getting Building Fund (GBF), 
Enterprise Zones and other programmes.  
 
Members asked about the last year’s process, which they heard had been 
streamlined to reflect the exceptional year to date. That approach had resulted in a 
move away from a marking (Exceptional to Inadequate) to an outcomes-based 
approach with findings of “met” and “action needed.”  
 
The Cumbria LEP’s APR session took place on 11 February 2021, with CLEP being 
advised in advance that provisional markings of met had been provided for all three 
themes.  
 
A discussion took place about Cumbria’s unique skills landscape whereby the Chief 
Executive – Cumbria LEP described the progress made on the work programme and 
other skills-related activities. Members had heard that the Local Skills Reports would 
influence the development of a skills offer that meets the local skills needs of 
employers and residents as well as feeding intelligence to Government and the 
national Skills and Productivity Board (SPB).  
 
Members heard that the Cumbria LEP had been engaged in a significant amount of 
delivery activity including leading the Business and Economic Response and 

11



6 Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) Scrutiny Board (8.3.21) 
 
 

 

Recovery Group (BERRG) of the Local Resilience Forum. Therefore, members are 
invited to identify any issues that they would like to explore further under this agenda 
item. The End of Year Reports and Annual Delivery Plan were provided members 
with a sense of the activity undertaken, alongside the 2020 Annual Report. It was 
explained that at each Annual General Meeting, Cumbria LEP issued its Annual 
Report for that calendar year. The last AGM was an on-line event and as such the 
issue of the Annual Report had also been issued electronically.  
 
RESOLVED that,   members noted the report.  
 
 
38 Date and Time of Next Meeting  
 
The next meeting of the LEP Scrutiny Board is due to take place 9 September 2021 
in Conference Room A/B, Cumbria House at 13:30 pm.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended 15:45pm 
 

12



ECONOMIC IMPACT UPDATE 

1. ISSUE 

1.1 Updating LEP Scrutiny Board members on the economic impact of COVID-19 

and the end of the EU Transition Period on Cumbria’s economy and businesses.  

2. RECOMMENDATIONS  

2.1 That the LEP Scrutiny Board note: 

a) this report;  

b) that a detailed Economic Forward Look/Think Piece is being undertaken 

(Annex A); 

c) that the Economic Forward Look/Think Piece will be circulated to members, 

once approved by the CLEP Board.  

3. BACKGROUND 

Introduction 

3.1 The combination of the pandemic and the end of the EU Exit transition period 

has inevitably impacted on the economy and businesses and CLEP takes seriously 

its responsibility to monitor the impact of this on Cumbria, its economy and its 

businesses.  

3.2 At headline level the remainder of this report provides an overview of this. 

However, now is the appropriate point to undertake a more comprehensive review of 

the economy as this has not been undertaken since 2019, when the Local Industrial 

Strategy was produced. Therefore, CLEP has commissioned an Economic Forward 

Look/Think Piece from its Economist and Senior Analyst, with this work currently 

underway. Members are invited to note the scope of this work, which is 

provided at Annex A.  

Headline Economic Overview 

3.3 Clearly, any review of Cumbria’s economy remains dominated by COVID-19. 

The last 12 months have seen a roller coaster impact of COVID-19 on Cumbria’s 

economy, with two further lockdowns and now a period of bounce back. The effects 

of COVID-19 have been particularly pronounced on Cumbria’s important visitor 

economy, with the impacts geographically concentrated in the Lake District and 

surrounding areas. However, no part of the economy has been immune.  

3.4 Over time, a good measure of the impact of COVID-19 is shown by the 

percentage of employees in Cumbria on the furlough scheme. During periods of 

lockdown, Cumbria has experienced above average rates of furloughing of staff, 

reflecting the disproportionate impacts on the visitor economy. The effects have 

varied widely across Cumbria, and during the early 2021 lockdown, rates of furlough 

were roughly 60%, 40% and 20% above the England average in South Lakeland, 

Eden and Allerdale respectively, but 20% and 30% below in Copeland and Barrow 

13

Agenda Item 6



respectively, where key industries have been less significantly  affected by      

COVID-19.  

Rate of take-up of Covid Job Retention Scheme, May 2020 to May 2021 

 

Source: HMRC and ONS CJRS Statistics. Note: data is collected by place of residence of employees. 

It measures the actual take-up of furloughed jobs as a % of potential total jobs.  

 

Rate of take-up of Covid Job Retention Scheme, February 2021 

 

Source: HMRC and ONS CJRS Statistics. Note: data is collected by place of residence of employees. 

It measures the actual take-up of furloughed jobs as a % of potential total jobs.  

14



3.5 The pattern of changes in those unemployed in work related benefits 

(claimant count) has followed a similar pattern to furlough. By the summer of 2021, 

labour market indicators suggested that the number of payrolled employees across 

Cumbria had returned to pre-pandemic levels and the claimant count had largely 

reversed the large hike experienced in April 2020.  

3.6 As across the UK as a whole, clear labour shortages are emerging as the 

economy recovers quickly from COVID effects. Pre-pandemic, the labour market 

was already exceptionally tight across much of Cumbria. During the summer of 

2021, many firms have faced a perfect storm caused by:  

 increases in demand and, in the case of the visitor economy, much higher visitor 

numbers as a result of the staycation effect in 2021 due to limited foreign travel;  

 some employees not choosing to return to work after a period on furlough;  

 the short term impacts of the ‘pingdemic’ as employees had to self-isolate; and  

 significant reduction in numbers of previous EU national workers, especially in 

the food and hospitality sectors..  

3.7 The other significant event of the last 12 months and of real long-term 

economic significance was the end of the EU Transition period on 314 December 

2020. The new Trade and Cooperation Agreement (TCA) came into force on 1 

January 2021 between the EU and the UK. This agreement, struck late in 2020, 

meant that a so-called ‘no-deal Brexit’ was avoided much to the relief of exporters 

and importers in Cumbria. The TCA avoids tariffs on goods travelling between the 

UK and EU, but does mean that business face new forms of regulations and 

administrative non-tariff barriers on both importing and exporting for goods and 

services.  

3.8 In April 2021, the LEP carried out an assessment of the impact of EU Exit on 

trade. The conclusions from this exercise were that: 

 There were around 400 firms in Cumbria (3% of all firms) where at least 10% or 

more of sales were into the EU prior to EU-Exit. These firms are concentrated in 

manufacturing, ICT, agriculture, professional/technical and wholesaling/retailing. 

These are the firms likely to be facing the most acute impacts from EU-Exit. Of 

these, an estimated 200 Cumbrian firms had more than 25% of sales with EU 

customers.  

 Prior to EU-Exit, around 4% of Cumbria’s economy relied on direct exports to the 

EU supporting around 7,000 jobs.  

 

15



Cumbria firms who export at all by size and sector (pre-EU Exit) 

 

 

Source: Analysis of Cumbria Business Survey, 2020 January 2021. Note: tourism related firms 

were explicitly asked to not include sales to overseas tourist as exports 

 

16



3.9 Firms are experiencing a range of practical challenges in both exporting to 

and accessing key supplies from the EU. There has been a reduction in sales 

amongst firms that relied on the EU for sales (as well as a result of supply chain 

disruption). Many Cumbrian business have been responding by reducing or ceasing 

exporting to the EU and Northern Ireland and seeking alternative suppliers, where 

this is possible. A small minority of companies are seeking to set up EU subsidiaries 

or moving part of the business to the EU. LEP modelling work suggests that these 

effects could, collectively, contribute to a 0.3% to 1.0% contraction in Cumbria‘s 

economy in 2021 on top of any impacts from COVID-19. 

Scenarios for potential SHORT TERM impacts during 2021 in GVA (£ms) in Cumbria as a result 

of EU Exit 

 

Source: CLEP EU-Exit Analysis for Cumbria, April 2021 

 

Next Steps 

3.10 The Economic Forward Look/Think Piece will be available in September for 

consideration by the CLEP Board at its meeting on 24 September 2021. At that point  

the findings will be shared with the LEP Scrutiny Board for consideration. Scrutiny 

Board Members are invited to note this report.   

17



ANNEX A 

CLEP 2021 Economic Forward Look/Think Piece 

 

1. Exec summary (in a visual) 

 

2. Purposes of the report 

a) There has been unprecedented levels of economic turbulence and profound 

changes have occurred over the last 12-18 months at a UK and Cumbrian level. 

b) So now is a good time to take stock and review where the Cumbria economy is 

and where it could be heading. 

c) This will help CLEP and its partners in its planning, but also businesses in 

Cumbria. 

 

3. Recent economic changes and challenges 

a) Last time CLEP looked at its economy in full was during 2018 and 2019 as part 

of the development of the evidence base for the Local Industrial Strategy (LIS). 

b) Many things have happened since then, most notably the effects of Covid-19 

starting in March 2020 and the realisation of EU Exit after many years of 

uncertainty. 

c) A  stocktake of key external changes impacting on the Cumbria economy  

Impacts of Covid-19 (building on and updating previous BERRG work) 

Impacts EU-Exit (building on and updating previous BERRG work) 

d) Highlight the role of Covid-19 in particular in accelerating trends which were 

already in train nationally and so in Cumbria: 

 Change in shopping and distribution patterns 

 Accelerated challenges for the high street  

 Remote and flexible working 

 Use of internet to access wide range of services (and goods) 

e) However, emphasise that the underlying challenges and opportunities 

highlighted in LIS still very much current: 

 Decline in workforce, limited population growth (although might look at 

uptick in housebuilding recently in parts of Cumbria) 

 Slow GVA growth (re-informed by the recently released 2019 GVA data 

from ONS) 

 Slow productivity growth  

 Reminder of the pre-Covid baseline forecasts for the trajectory of the 

economy  

 

18



4. Short term Prospects for Cumbria 

a) As some of the uncertainty has cleared, now possible to look forward next 12 

to 24 months  

b) National forecasts of economic change more consistent and lower bands of 

uncertainty than before 

c) Set out likely path of recovery from Covid-19 from summer 2021 and bedding 

down of EU Exit and so potential path of economy in terms of  

 Jobs 

 GVA 

 Unemployment 

 Wages/incomes 

 [Scenarios from Experian provide a broad view and stating point] 

d) Describe key potential movements in:  

 Labour supply and unemployment 

 Business prospects by sector 

 Visitor economy 

e) Key emerging shorter term challenges and opportunities including: 

 Labour demand and supply mismatches 

 Staycation Britain 

 Company indebtedness 

 EU-Exit 

 

5. Longer term drivers for Cumbria 

a) This is looking forward the next 3 to 10 years with a summary a PESTEL1 

analysis applied to Cumbria . Focus on known trends and changes that could 

emerge 

b) Political  

 Possible Scottish independence (disruption, more competition, border 

barriers etc) 

 Competition (from South of Scotland Development Agency) 

 Levelling up agenda 

 National energy policy and focus on nuclear as opposed to other clean 

energy sources [link to environmental] 

 Disruption from Local Government Reform (in whatever form it takes) 

 Devolution and other policies on delivery of national priorities (e.g. skills) 

c) Economic  

 Future government funding and finances 

                                                           
1 P – Political, E – Economic, S – Social, T – Technological, E – Environmental and L – Legal 

19



 Roll out of changed subsidy arrangement for farming and move to ELMS 

 Trade deals with major agricultural nations 

 UK Shared Prosperity Fund 

d) Societal  

 Ageing population (workforce, health care, housing, mobility and other 

challenges and opportunities) 

 Continued change in shopping patterns and town centres  

 Increase importance of environment in consumption patterns  

e) Technological  

 New forms of mobility (drones etc)  

 Electrical vehicles  

f) Environmental  

 Impact of climate change 

 Drive for clean energy sources 

 Move to a hydrogen economy 

 Energy distribution and storage  

 

6. Emerging implications and questions 

a) What does this all mean for Cumbria’s economy? 

b) What are the big opportunities? 

c) What are the big challenges?  

 

 

20



LABOUR SUPPLY AND SKILLS 

1. ISSUE 

1.1 The current issues in relation to labour supply and skills.     

2. RECOMMENDATIONS  

2.1 That the LEP Scrutiny Board note this report and raise any questions in 

relation to it.  

3. BACKGROUND 

3.1 The Local Industrial Strategy identified that one of the major challenges for 

Cumbria’s economic growth was its declining working age, with the forecasting at the 

time identifying that this would have significant implications for labour supply, with 

20,000 too few people for ‘business as usual’ jobs by 2034, as outlined in the graph 

below.  

 

3.2 Unfortunately, the labour supply challenges have rapidly accelerated as a 

result of the combination of the pandemic and EU Exit, as outlined in the economic 

impact report. These labour shortages have been particularly acute in the main 

tourism areas reflecting the concentration of visitor economy activity.  However, 

these labour challenges are not restricted to the visitor economy and are also 

affecting logistics, advanced manufacturing and construction across the county.  

3.3 The labour supply issue is further complicated by the potential availability of 

people, as there were 10,765 claimants seeking work in July, which was 4,270 more 

than two years ago, with the rates for 16-24 year olds in Barrow and 25-34 year olds 

in Carlisle exceeding the national average. Turning to furlough there remained 

11,300 furloughed employments in Cumbria, on the latest available data. Therefore, 

there are people that are potentially available in the labour market.  

3.4 There is a further interesting statistic in relation to Cumbria’s labour supply 

and that is the 35,946 people receiving Universal Credits, which is 20,457 higher 

21

Agenda Item 7



than two years ago. Over the last 3 months there have been more working claimants 

in Cumbria than those seeking work, this differs from the position pre-pandemic and 

also at the national level. This could point to differences in the employment offer 

available in Cumbria. Further work is required to better understand this.  

3.5 In terms of apprenticeships, the number of starts have continued to reduce 

year on year, a trend that reflects the national position. Cumbria’s peak year for 

starts was 2015/16, since when numbers have been on a downward trajectory. 

Members will wish to note that the Quarter 2 figures for 2020/21 are interim and 

subject to change.   

2015/16 2016/17 2017/2018 2018/19 2019/20 2020/21 Q2 

5,930 5,860 4,530 4,340 3,650 2,070 

 

3.6 It appears that there is some form of disconnect between supply and demand, 

with businesses desperately short of labour at the same point that there are people 

available for work. Therefore, there is a requirement to better link residents in areas 

where there continues to be higher levels of unemployment and under-employment 

to areas and sectors facing acute labour shortages. Partners are therefore focusing 

on the best mechanisms to achieve this.  

3.7 Currently, the picture is complex with a raft of different initiatives operating 

side by side as outlined at Annex A.  

3.8 There are also different Plan for Jobs initiatives for different client groups, as 

outlined at Annex B. CLEP understands that across Cumbria and Lancashire there 

are also 70 Job Coaches and has asked DWP colleagues to provide details on the 

distribution of these, so that the business community is clear as to how it can best 

access this support to meet their labour needs.   

3.9 In the immediate term CLEP formed a Task and Finish Group with a wide 

range of partners to address the significant challenges currently faced by the Visitor 

Economy in securing labour. The Group developed an Action Plan (Annex C), which 

involves a wide range of partners with for example, colleagues in Cumbria Tourism 

promoting Cumbria as ‘the place to work’ for the visitor economy. It is recognised 

that this Task and Finish Group is only looking to address the short term challenges 

and as such at its next meeting on 14 September 2021, the Visitor Economy Sector 

Panel will consider what measures it requires to address its labour and skills 

challenges in the longer term.  

3.10 Understandably, partners are keen to make the system work as effectively as 

possible for both job seekers and businesses. Lakes College has therefore 

submitted a Community Renewal Fund application for the Cumbria Skills Gateway. 

This will deliver an innovative, online and face to face skills brokerage system 

enabling Cumbrian employers and individuals to navigate a complex skills system, 

access digital resources and support to fill job opportunities in the visitor economy 

and aspects of health and social care. Government has yet to reach a decision on 

this application.  

22



3.11 This, if successful, would sit alongside the successful Strategic Development 

Fund (SDF) application from the four colleges in Cumbria, together with the 

University of Cumbria, to create a visible and high-profile interface for Cumbria’s 

employers and industries through the Cumbria Colleges Business Centre (CCBC), 

ensuring alignment to local skills priorities. The SDF funding will be used to 

accelerate collaborative working in Cumbria, with colleges and partners pooling their 

resources through a ‘hub-and-spoke’ model, providing a ‘front door’ to skills and 

productivity solutions, pulling together the resources of wider providers, agencies, 

Employer Representative Bodies (ERBs) and the LEP, thereby unifying support pan-

Cumbria. A range of targeted services will be provided to Cumbria-based businesses 

of all sizes, covering a range of issues including workforce development. Accessing 

the CCBC will transform understanding of the skills system with colleges working 

directly with employers on employees’ training and CPD needs.  

3.12 Cumbria Chamber of Commerce has also secured one of the eight Local 

Skills Improvement Plan Trailblazers from DfE. The trailblazers are focused on 

ensuring that the skills needs of businesses are met.  A recent note from the 

Chamber of Commerce’s MD advised that guidance was still awaited from DfE and 

as such the detailed planning had yet to commence.  

3.13 In advance of the guidance being available, and given the limited timescales 

for delivery, the Chamber’s assumption was that activity would focus on:  

 Setting up mechanisms and groups 

 Drawing together and reviewing the information that’s already available and 

checking it across the breadth of the business community 

 Identifying any gaps/useful additional information, establishing what can 

reasonably be achieved in the timescales, addressing what we can and 

putting forward a plan/proposal in the LSIP for the rest 

 Testing and agreeing with providers how we best work with them to use the 

information to seek to ensure the needs of businesses are being met and 

feeding into forward planning 

 Producing a plan for moving forward, including future activities and how we 

propose the groups and mechanisms move forward (including any changes 

based on experience in the pilot) and how we propose to refresh employer 

needs information on an ongoing basis 

3.14 It is understood that draft guidance has been prepared and as such the 

position is likely to be updated imminently. Additionally, the Chamber and CLEP 

need to respond to DfE on how the Skills Advisory Panel and LSIP work 

programmes will operate during the 2021/22 transition period, given the expectation 

that in future LSIPs will replace SAPs. A draft response is being prepared for 

submission to DfE by 3 September 2021.  

 

23



3.15 Conversations are also taking place with government nationally, on the need 

to ensure that the skills and labour system works more effectively for the business 

community.  

3.16 Members are invited to note this report and raise any questions in relation to 

this.  

 

  

24



ANNEX A 

 

 

Cumbria Skills & 

Employability Map

16-19 Young People
Adults 

Unemployed

Adults In Work
Bodies, Depts &

 Agencies

DWP/JCP

CCC

BEIS

DfE/ESFA

CLEP

Youth 

Hubs

MCLG

Childrens Trust 

Board

Career Hub 

(LEP Lead)

16-18 Study 

Programme

Traineeships

Apprenticeships

Destinations

6th Form

Full/Part-

Time FE

Full/Part -

Time HE

Employment with 

Training

Employment 

without Training

Unemployment

Programmes

Signposts

Hello Future 

(UoC Lead)

Adult Education

The Edge 

(Carlisle FEC 

Lead)

Signposts

Jobs Fuse 

(Inspira Lead)

Funding

AEB

ESF

ESFA 

Non-Levy

Levy

District 

Authorities

Town Deals

Local Skills 

Responsiveness 

Programme

The Key 

(Inspira Lead)

Journey to Work 

(G4S Lead)

Job Fuse 

(Inspira Lead)

Community Learning 

(CCC Lead)

Building Better 

Opportunities

 Kickstart 

Sector Based 

Work 

Academies

Skills 

Advisory 

Panel

Adult Community 

Education

Primary & 

Secondary 

Schools

T - Levels

Institutes of 

Technology

PESSG
CASH

CWBLP

25



ANNEX B 

 

 

 

26



ANNEX C 

ADDRESSING SKILLS AND LABOUR SHORTAGES IN THE VISITOR ECONOMY – ACTION PLAN 
Action Owner/Lead Deadline Update 17/06 Update 18/06 Status 

Labour Supply and Demand    

Develop and implement a comprehensive 
offer to support the Sector to recruit 

Elaine Herbert, DWP 18 June 2021 Email address 
shared widely 

 Closed 

Provide DWP with details of vacancies that 
are currently available using 
Cumbria.hospitality@dwp.gov.uk 

All industry 
Representatives 

ongoing This has 
started – 
update 
required from 
representatives 
at 18/06 
meeting 

 Closed 

Provide specific business support advice on 
mechanisms to reduce labour demand by 
process reengineering  

Lynsey Parke, CLEP ongoing Underway and 
responsive as 
necessary 

 Closed 

Promote access to opportunities for current 
and future university students 

Angela Anthonisz, UoC 18 June 2021 To update at 
the meeting 

 Closed 

Promote access to opportunities across the 
FE sector 

Craig Ivison, CLEP 16 June 2021 Flyer circulated  Closed 

Promote access to opportunities across 
schools to 16+ pupils 

Cath Dutton, CLEP 16 June 2021 Flyer circulated  Closed 

Develop guidance for employers looking to 
employ 16-18 year olds, especially around 
Sunday working and commercial kitchens 

Cath Dutton, CLEP 21 June 2021  Decision needed 
on where this will 
be shared for 
maximum impact 

Closed 

Produce a policy proposal regarding the need 
for easements around international labour, 
once furlough and unemployment numbers 
are reduced 

Jo Lappin, CLEP Date to be 
Determined 2021 

 This will be picked 
up with Local 
Economic 
Recovery Group at 
the appropriate 
time 

Open 

27

mailto:Cumbria.hospitality@dwp.gov.uk


Developing the Skills Pipeline    

Explore developing industry placements for 
pre-university students  

Angela Anthonisz, UoC 30 September 
2021 

 Further updates at 
the next meeting 

Open 

Explore hospitality apprenticeships 
programme  

Cath Dutton, CLEP 30 September 
2021 

 Further updates at 
the next meeting 

Open 

Ensure that the Careers Hub actively and 
visibly promotes careers in the sector to 
young people  

Cath Dutton, CLEP Ongoing Underway  Closed 

Accessibility    

Initiate discussions with CCC on developing a 
demand responsive approach to the specific 
transport needs of the sector 

Jo Lappin, CLEP  18 June 2021 Being realised 
through TISG 

 Closed 

Identify areas of coordinated demand for 
additional transport 

Gill Haigh, CT and Tom 
Waterhouse, Stagecoach
  

Ongoing  To feed back at 
next meeting 

Open 

Explore how the sector’s staff 
accommodation offer can be developed to 
encourage new recruits to the sector 
 

Gill Haigh Ongoing  To feed back at 
next meeting 

Open 

Communications    

Develop and implement a visitor economy 
recruitment communications plan 

Gill Haigh, CT 18 June 2021 Plan complete 
(see papers for 
18/06) 

 Closed 

Feedback to group on progress made by 
SMAC sub-cell following the meeting on 9 
June, including resources available to 
support a campaign.  

John Reynolds, CLEP 10 June 2021 Finished  Closed 

Feedback best websites to advertise 
vacancies to Cumbria Tourism to better 
understand where is best to focus comms 
efforts 

Gill Haigh, CT COP 15 June 2021   Closed 

28



Local authorities to support in providing 
tourism recruitment articles for the 
campaign 

Jessica Goodfellow, EDC, 
and Joe Broomfield ABC 
to coordinate 

COP 15 June 2021 Request has 
been shared 
with all LA reps 

 Closed 

Intelligence    

Share National Tourism report from FSB via 
Maisie Hunt when available 

Gary Lovatt, FSB 30 June 2021  Report to be 
circulated 
18/06 

 Closed  

 

 

 

29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



CLEP BUSINESS SUPPORT ACTIVITY 

 

1. ISSUE 

 

1.1  Progress on implementing the BEIS funded business programmes.  

 

2.  RECOMMENDATION 

 

2.1 That LEP Scrutiny Board members note the progress in implementing BEIS  

funded business programmes and raise any questions in relation to this.   

    

3. BACKGROUND 

 

Introduction 

 

3.1 During 2021/22 CLEP has consolidated its business support delivery activity, 

by bringing in-house the BEIS funded business support programme.  

 

3.2 The new consolidated team is led by CLEP’s Head of Business Programmes, 

with a Business Growth Manager in post to specifically lead the delivery of the 

Business Support programme.  

 

3.3 The in-house team consists of a Project Manager, who will provide the triage 

service for the business support programme and management of the Peer Networks 

programme and a Business Adviser, who will directly deliver business advice. The 

DiT KAM programme is also delivered by the team via a Key Account Manager.   

 

Business Support Programme 

 

3.4 The delivery of the £462,000 BEIS funded business support activity has been 

operational since 1 April 2021. This is part of the national ‘Growth Hub’ brand and is 

focused on delivering the BEIS local business support offer, through the following 

activities:  

 

 Light Intensity Assist - which equates to a basic engagement; 

 

 Medium Intensity Assist - with a business diagnostic of up to 3 hours;  

 

 High Intensity Assist - with a business engagement of up to 12 hours to 

assist SME’s to grow; 

 

 Workshops - focused on issues of interest to a range of businesses.  

 

3.5 The programme is being delivered by a combination of in-house and 

subcontracted resource. This delivery model was chosen as CLEP wanted to 

31

Agenda Item 8



engage a wide range of business representative organisations in the delivery of the 

programme to ensure that businesses had access to a wide range of sectoral, 

geographic and client group expertise and to cement CLEP’s partnership working 

commitment.   

 

3.6 Contracts are currently in place with seven sub-contractors, with further 

subcontractors being procured at this time.  

 

3.7 Although, the contract was only received towards the end of the first quarter of 

the 2021/22 contract year, good progress has been made. This includes:  

 

 The soft launch to the marketplace with an overall positive reaction. The launch 

included a standalone website (currently a holding page) and social media pages 

(LinkedIn, Twitter and Facebook).   

 

 Business engagement through providing a range of Light, Medium and High 

Intensity Assists to SMEs. This has created a healthy pipeline of activity, which 

will continue to grow as new subcontractors get established.   

 

 Referrals have been made to a wide range of other service providers including 

Innovate UK, Department for International Trade, Made Smarter, Digital Tech 

Cumbria and Cumbria Chamber of Commerce ERDF programmes.  

  

 The Hub has delivered 6 workshops to date with a calendar of events being 

finalised for rollout over the remainder of the year. Workshops cover a broad 

range of topics and are focused on areas such as innovation, trading 

internationally, productivity, decision making, skills and workforce development.   

   

Peer Network Programme 

 

3.8 The £255,000 Peer Networks programme is funded to deliver 17 cohorts of 11 

SME leaders that wish to stabilise, grow and develop their organisation with the 

support of like-minded entrepreneurs from across the Cumbrian business 

community. It provides a combination of fortnightly group sessions plus 121 support.  

 

3.9 In order to qualify businesses must have operated for at least a year, have 

five employees or more, a turnover of at least £100,000 and with the aspiration to 

grow the business.  

 

3.10 The delivery of the programme has been subcontracted to seven different 

sub-contractors, with CLEP providing all wrap-around programme management 

activity.  

 

3.11 LEP Scrutiny Board members are invited to note this report and raise 

any issues in relation to this.    

 

32



RECOVERY PLANNING – IMPLEMENTING THE RETHINK THEME 
 
1. ISSUE 

1.1 Updating LEP Scrutiny Board Members on the implementation of the Rethink 

theme within “Restart, Reboot, Rethink – A Plan for Cumbria’s Economic Recovery.”  

 

2. RECOMMENDATION 

2.1 That the LEP Scrutiny Board note the latest position on implementing the six 

rethink themes.  

3. BACKGROUND 

Introduction 

 

3.1 Restart, Reboot, Rethink continues to evolve and be shaped by the re-

opening of the economy. CLEP continues to drive and promote elements of the plan 

supporting the return to business activity, aligning pre-pandemic priorities that 

remain valid and pushing the envelope to seek new opportunities that will benefit the 

county across the 6 Rethink themes of:  

 

 Clean Energy Production – a world-recognised heritage and expertise which 

provides the platform for significant future investment in energy generation.  

 

 Diversify to Thrive – building on the pivoting that has taken place and 

moving it to the next level in terms of localisation of supply chains, movement 

into new markets and extending inward investment. 

 

 The New Visitor Experience – capturing the changes in sustainable visitor 

behaviour by offering a world class experience to a wide range of markets.  

 

 The Future of Food – enhancing Cumbria’s crop-based food production to sit 

alongside its existing meat and dairy excellence. 

 

 Cumbria, The UK’s Natural Capital – promoting and exploiting the benefits 

created by having the most protected landscape in England. 

 

 The Way We Live, The Way We Work Now - benefitting from the rethink that 

people are making about their lives and the way that they will live and work in 

the future. 

 

3.2 The headline activity on each of the themes is outlined below.  

 

33

Agenda Item 9



Clean Energy Production 

 

3.3 Since the last Scrutiny Board meeting CLEP has produced a comprehensive 

Clean Energy Plan, the summary of which is provided at Annex A. This summary 

plan is underpinned by detailed project specific plans, which CLEP is currently 

moving forward in implementing. Key points to note are as follows: 

 

 STEP - Cumbria has been long listed in UKAEA’s siting competition for a 

Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production (STEP) fusion facility. The 

application was endorsed by a considerable number of stakeholders including 

our Local Authorities, business community and academic institutions both in 

Cumbria and further afield. A successful site visit took place in August, with 

the UKAEA team content that all required information had been provided. The 

shortlist is expected to be announced within the next month or two and CLEP 

believes that the ‘STEP at Moorside’ proposition is strong and as such well 

positioned to move through to the next stage of the process. 

 

 Hydrogen – the feasibility exercise is now being finalised by Cadent, 

Northern Gas Networks, Progressive Energy and Spirit Energy to assess and 

the potential follow on from HyNet. The results are expected to be available in 

September.  

 

 Offshore Wind – meetings have taken place with the leaseholders on the 

new Leasing Round 4 site. These discussions will increasingly focus on the 

supply chain and ‘component’ manufacturing potential for Cumbrian 

Businesses 

Diversify to Thrive 

 

3.4 In April, CLEP hosted a virtual Advanced Manufacturing Summit that attracted 

over 90 participants from across a large number of businesses and organisations. 

The theme for the event was focused on the future opportunities in the sector , with 

the keynote speech provided by the former CEO of Siemens and architect of the 

Made Smarter Programme – Juergen Maier. In addition, key contributions were 

made by BAE Systems on Approaches to Supply Chains and Beyond; the Science 

and Technology Facilities Council on Smart Factories and Emerging Space 

Technologies and the Oxley Group on manufacturing in Cumbria, their improvement 

programme and adapting to the pandemic. This event is being followed up with a 

series of specific targeted workshops for the manufacturing sector, particularly 

focused on developing new market opportunities.  

 

3.5 The Clean Energy Sector Panel has engaged with the proposed Robotics and 

AI Collaboration Laboratory, which will enable ends users and the supply chain, 

including academia, to work collaboratively towards developing and delivering the 

34



next generation of robotics services, using nuclear decommissioning as a first use 

case. 

3.6 Discussions have also been held with Sheffield University in support of its 

submission for a new £170m Nuclear Decommissioning Research Centre. The 

proposed investment will create innovation infrastructure, which will enable a step 

change in the pace, scale and translation of research outcomes in nuclear 

decommissioning and disposal. The proposal is to create an agile and collaborative 

space for RD&I in partnership with industry, within a new purpose designed facility in 

proximity to the Sellafield site. 

The New Visitor Experience 

 

3.7 Activity focused on supporting sector leads to prepare for summer 2021, with 

partners working collaboratively to realise priorities around the attract and disperse 

theme and ensure that adequate service provision was available for expected 

visitors, including temporary camp sites and parking for motor home vehicles.  

 

3.8 As outlined in the paper on labour supply a major issue was securing 

sufficient people to meet the needs of the sector and this has presented constraints 

on what businesses have to been able to deliver over the busy summer period. 

CLEP therefore formed a Task and Finish Group to help respond to the immediate 

issues.  

 

3.9 At its meeting in September the Visitor Economy Sector Panel is undertaking 

a further review of the Sector Plan to reflect the significant changes that have 

occurred in the Visitor Economy as a consequence of the pandemic and the end of 

the EU Exit. This will be available in early autumn.   

 

Future of Food  

 

3.10 CLEP has been working with several stakeholders to support the farming 

community with transition from existing payment schemes to initiatives being 

developed under the Environmental Land Management (ELM) proposition. More 

recently, engagement with the Food Farming and Countryside Commission (FFCC) 

has taken place to support the Cumbria Enquiry and the development of a pilot 

toolkit designed to help farmers identify opportunity for their businesses. 

 

3.11 A specific Sub-Group of the Rural Sector Panel has been formed to  

develop the delivery priorities for this theme, with the following priorities agreed:  

 

 Food Supply Resilience - opportunity to identify ways in which to produce 

more UK/Cumbrian grown food, and increase resilience in the food supply 

chain.  

35



 Meat and Dairy provenance - working with suppliers to develop a more 

nuanced message around origin and animal health and wellbeing.  

 

 Borderlands Dairy Initiative – ensuring that Cumbrian farmers engage with 

and benefit from this opportunity.  

 

 Think local, buy local – encouraging consumers to support their local 

businesses to deliver resilience and sustainability.  

 

 Growing our value-added exports to UK and International Markets -  in 

line with new market opportunities. 

 

 Strength in Places Dairy Chain Project – ensuring that Cumbria effectively 

engages in the commercialisation opportunities presented by this. 

 

 Marketing Cumbria’s Food Offer – increase marketing activity to promote 

Brand Cumbria.  

 

 Centre for Land Based Learning - ensuring that Cumbria continues to 

benefit from high quality land-based training provision and that this is further 

developed to meet 21st century requirements.  

 

 Productivity Improvements - supporting the food and farming community to 

increase productivity levels through tailored advice, innovation, and adoption 

of new technologies.   

 

3.12 The Sub-Group is now developing the detailed delivery plan to address the 

highlighted workstreams and agree priority leads. Additionally, it is exploring the 

development of a website presence, which would serve two purposes – providing an 

information hub for the rural sector and promoting Cumbria’s offer to the wider world.  

 

Cumbria, The UK’s Natural Capital 

 

3.13 CLEP continues to consider how return on investment can be secured from 

Cumbria’s natural capital beyond the obvious benefits, such as the landscape acting 

as a catalyst to secure visitors. Work has been ongoing with CLEP’s economist and 

other external organisations to active explore this issue. It is clear that there are no 

‘magic bullets’, but there is potentially an opportunity to develop investable 

propositions (the supply of investments or potential credits) that could benefit from a 

future market in ‘nature credits’, which could be driven by the net gain idea related to 

development and/or legislative drivers. Further work will continue over the coming 

months.  

 

36



3.14 CLEP continued to provide ongoing support to the county led Nature 

Recovery Strategy Pilot that was submitted to DeFRA. This included supporting the 

provision of economic intelligence to bolster the submission and providing a member 

to the pilot team. 

 

3.15 In addition, support was provided on the development of the applications for 

the Green Recovery Challenge Fund, which were announced in July, with five 

Cumbria specific bids securing funding.  

 

The Way We Live, The Way We Work Now  

 

3.16 The marketing collateral has been reappraised to ensure that it accurately 

reflected those new opportunities available to people as a consequence of the 

pandemic.  

3.17 CLEP facilitated a workshop event – ‘The Way We Work Now – An Interactive 

Workshop on Adapting to Hybrid Working’ for businesses in Cumbria. This took 

place on 27 May 2021, and is being followed up with further events to support 

businesses to adapt to different working patterns.  

3.18 CLEP is also currently re-evaluating its Our Future campaign, which was 

launched prior to the pandemic but paused when restrictions were imposed. Our 

Future aims to demonstrate the range of career options available to young people 

within the county and celebrate their achievements. 

 

  

37



ANNEX A  

CUMBRIA CLEAN ENERGY PLAN - SUMMARY STATUS 

Development Desired Outcome Status Key Next Step 

Moorside To deliver a large 3.2GW EPR Nuclear Power Station at the 

Moorside site to be centre point of a clean energy hub. 

 Enable new finance legislation 

through government.  

STEP To deliver a prototype fusion reactor at the Moorside site 

and to become a centre for the development of fusion 

technology in the UK.  

 Secure Moorside as the 

preferred site for STEP through 

UKAEA competition. 

SMR To deliver a UK SMR reactor to Fellside/Moorside in 3 initial 

orders and to make case for further SMR for Sellafield 

Decarbonisation. Establish Cumbria as manufacturing base 

for wider SMR deployment. 

 Lobby for National Policy 

Statement on the siting of initial 

SMRs and funding deployment 

mechanism. 

AMR Establish Cumbria as base for development of range of AMR 

technologies. 

 Lobby for Government funding 

settlement for AMR. 

Offshore To grow Offshore Wind Capacity through further leasing 

rounds and to grow Cumbria Supply Chain and infrastructure 

capability to support Irish Sea and wider Offshore 

Deployment. 

 Engagement with Lease 4 

Developments and Engage with 

Crown Estates on future bids. 

Hydrogen To put in place a Hydrogen generation/utilisation capability 

in Cumbria that can grow in line with national strategy with 

transition from natural gas/carbon capture to offshore wind 

and Nuclear.  

 Complete Overall Cumbria 

Study and gain funding for 

specific projects. 

Borderlands Identify and deliver a series of Local Energy Projects. 

Successful delivery of these leading projects will provide 

confidence for investment in expansion. 

 Complete data analysis and 

local area project identification 

stage. 

Tidal/Wave Watching brief with no schemes at present.   

Infrastructure 

Grid Cumbria Clean Energy Objectives are not constrained by 

Electricity Grid Capacity. 

 Issue Current Status Review to 

Stakeholders with 

recommended forward 

strategy. 

NDA Land 

 
 

NDA land ownership is an enabler for new clean energy 

development. 

 Meeting in August with Senior 

Stakeholders to discuss “art of 

the possible” 

 

38



LEP REVIEW  

1. ISSUE 

1.1 Updating LEP Scrutiny Board’s on the LEP Review.    

2. RECOMMENDATIONS  

2.1 That the LEP Scrutiny Board note this report and raise any questions in 

relation to it.  

3. BACKGROUND 

Introduction 

3.1 Members are aware that a review of LEPs was undertaken in 2018, which 

resulted in the publication of “Strengthened Local Enterprise Partnerships” report, 

which outlined the expectation of LEPs going forward in relation to governance, 

strategy and delivery. This has formed the basis of the assessment of LEP 

performance, subsequently, with the LEP Scrutiny Board considering this at previous 

meetings.  

3.2 During the Budget, Government announced its intention to undertake a further 

review of LEPs. This LEP Review is focusing consideration on the following four 

broads themes:   

 Objectives and Functions 

 Geographies and Accountabilities 

 Representation and Interaction with Local Government 

 Implementation and Funding 

3.3 The Terms of Reference for the Review were signed off by Ministers in April 

2021 and since then meetings have taken place with officials on each of the themes, 

with the LEP input lead by a LEP Chair supported by a small number of Chief 

Executives, responsible for developing the policy proposition for each of the themes.  

3.4 The overall co-ordination of the LEP’s input has been led by The LEP Network 

to ensure a consistency of approach and the development of a coherent policy 

proposition. The LEP Network Board, consisting of supra-regional Chairs and Chief 

Executives have operated as the Steering Group for the work. The Cumbia LEP 

Chief Executive is a member of this Steering Group.   

3.5 Government officials have produced initial proposition papers for each of the  

themes, which LEPs have subsequently responded to, with the intention being to 

reach an agreed position, prior to submission to Ministers.  

3.6 The original intention was that the LEP Review would be concluded and 

announced prior to Recess. However, a letter from Minister Scully in July 2021 

confirmed that, as previously foreshadowed, the future role of Local Enterprise 

Partnerships would be considered as part of the wider consideration of the role of 

business leadership in driving levelling up, within the context of the White Paper and 

39

Agenda Item 10



the Spending Review. This means that the outcome of the LEP Review is unlikely to 

emerge until the second half of October, at earliest.  

3.7 The functions paper was produced some months ago and this identified that 

LEPs would focus on Strategy and Intelligence; Sector Development; and the 

delivery of Business support activity. In anticipation of the outcome of the Review, 

CLEP has looked to structure its activities around these proposed functions.  

3.8 In the meantime, CLEP remains delivery focused, ensuring that all of its 

contracted activity is delivered to standard and time.  

3.9 LEP Scrutiny Board Members are invited to note this report and raise 

any questions, in relation to it.  

40


	Agenda
	5 MINUTES
	6 ECONOMIC IMPACT UPDATE
	7 LABOUR SUPPLY AND SKILLS
	8 CLEP SUPPORT FOR BUSINESS
	9 RECOVERY PLANNING - IMPLEMENTING THE RETHINK THEME
	10 LEP REVIEW

